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CONDITION

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
I. Exterior. Beechwood, the Isaac Kinsey House, sits upon a
prominent knoll above the West Fork of Whitewater River. It is
a 2 story 8x10 void regular brick hip roofed ell plan country
villa in the Italianate style. The hip roof is surmounted by a
wood frame cupola with bracketed cornice of 5 x 3 voids centered
over the main mass of the house. The principal entry is in the
west elevation. It is a semicircular stone arched entry of
rusticated stone work, surrounded by a two story classically
inspired wrought iron veranda. The entryway is flanked on the
right by a two story demi-hexagonal bay of 3 windows per floor.
A matching 2 story bay is located on the east elevation over-
looking the garden. The north elevation is regular, of 8 voids.
One void is a 1 story oriel windew enframed in Romanesque type
pilasters. The service wing is of 8 voids, of brick, 2 stories
high with a hipped roof. It forms the long bar of the ell. The
main cornice on the main mass and the service ell is bracketed,
the supports being of the console type. The chimneys are capped
by ornamental terra cotta chimney caps. Each bay is also capped
by an ornament of wood acting as a finial.
IT. Interior. The main block of Beechwood consists of four
rooms to the first floor, the entry hall, front parlour, back
parlour and sitting room or library. The main stairs to the
second floor are located in the entry hall. The newel is a fine
piece of 19th century woodwork, as is the curvelinear stairway
itself. The entrway is enframed in a wooden arch duplicating
the lines .of the exterior stone are without the rustication. The
front parlour is to the left of the entry hall, entered through
a square headed door. This was the principal parlour. It has the
oriel window on its north elevation. An excellent plaster medal-
lion in the ceiling holds the hanger for an ornate gas chandeliej
of restrained design. The rear parlour is entered from the
front parlour through sliding double doors. It is a smaller
eg;tion of the front parlour. Both parlours have fine marble
mantelpieces of the period. The sitting room or library is
|south of the rear parlour. It has the bay window on the east
elevation as most of its east wall. A wooden mantelpiece with
central cartouche type ornament is the principal feature of this
room. The Dining Room is entered from the main entry through
a wooden archway duplicating that of the main entry. It extends
from the main block into the service wing. The bay window on the
west elevation forms part of its west wall. It contains a wooden
mantel, a china cabinet and a butler's cupboard which appear to
be contemporaneous with the house. The last room on the ground
floor is the kitchen, which is south of the dining room. It
has washboarding of a height of 36 inches all around its four
walls.
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<! The-second floor consists of 3 bed chambers and a stair hall
in the main block and 2 chambers and a wash room in the service
ell. The main block chambers have small, refined mantels which
are scaled down versions of the first floor mantels. The north-
east chamber has an original walnut wash stand(built in) with
marble top.

The basement of the Kinsey House runs under the main block
and service ell. Under the main block it appears a heating device
was installed at an early date. A natural gas well head is also
located under the house, providing for the original source of
illuminating gas for the house. The cellar under the service ell
was used for a wine cellar and food storage.

III. Outbuildings. Beechwood is the center of a large scale
farming complex originated by its first owner. The outbuildings
are broken down into two classifications:

A. Domestic Accessory Buildings. The house itself is
adjoined on the east by a 1 story brick hip roofed dairy house
which has a cellar spring house under it on the east. A 1 story
gabled brick smoke house is immediately east of the dairy house.
The privy has been replaced by a WPA outdoor toilet. A 1% story
frame tenant house stood south of the smoke house. It has been
removed and replaced by a 1% story frame garage rebuilt out of
materials from the tenant house.

B. Farm Outbuildings. The Beechwood farm layout is typical
of mid 19th century agricultural design. An enclosed barn yard
surrounded by a 3 board wood fence stands southeast of the house
some 300 feet. The barn yard encloses a 1% story braced frame
grainery ' sheathed in poplar clapboards with a gable roof, a 1%
story braced frame barn sheathed in clapboards with gable roof,

a 1 story gabled braced frame cowshed, and a 1 story braced
frame clapboard sheathed gabled .catriage house. The grouping is
illustrated by an architects's plot plan indicating the function
of each unit. Several structures have been demolished or removed.
IV. Architect. Beechwood was designed by Joel Stover, a Richmond
architect. Portions of his original drawings for the house, in-
cluding a plot plan have survived. Additionally, a tromp-1'oel
painting on a wooden backboard formerly hung in the cupola listing
the architect, builder Ferd. Jones, and all subcontractors,
giving the house is completion date of 1871.

Note: The original contemplated use of each accessory structure
appears on the plot plan of Joel Stover attached to this nomina-
tion.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

I. Architectural Significance. Beechwood was designed by Joel
Stover, an architect having an office in the Tremont Block in
Richmond. This brilliant essay in Italianate style is the only
proven work of “tover in Indiana. The design, in particular the
floor plan with its opposing bays, has antecedents in Calbert v
Vaux's Villas and Cottages, though it is obviously not a c¢opy
of any design in that work. The organization of interior space
in Beechwood is extremely skillful. The logical placement of
the entry hall as a central exchange point for all rooms with-
out resorting to the ubiquitous long stair hall is ingenious.
The service wing is well thought out, as is the location of the
accessory structures to the house and the barnyard. Stover's
grasp of Italianate detailing is excellent; his brackets are
small-scale and crisply executed by Ferd Jones, the general
contractor. The 2 story wrought & cast iron porch veranda
surrounding the west entryway is particularly graceful and
attradtiveé. 'The ¢upola i§ a perfect complement to the house.-
Beechwood is one of Indiana's finest Victorian country homes.
It deserves special preservation as a rare surviving example

of a home of a gentleman of wealth and leisure of the 1870's.
IT. Historical Significance. Beechwood was built by Isaac
Kinsey, a Richmond industrialist and merchant. Kinsey was train{
ed as a brickmaker in Richmond. In 1846, he moved to Cincinnati
and went into a produce wholesaling business with his brother
Thomas. In 1848-49, Thomas Kinsey went to California and re-
covered a substantial fortune from the gold fields. He returned
to Indiana and with Isaac purchased the Joel Hiatt farm in
Washington Township in 1852. 1Isaac and Thomas farmed the Hiatt
Farm for several years. In 1868, Isaac bought out the owners

of the Hoosier Drill Company of Milton. This concern made seed
drills. Kinsey increased the sales and type of equipment carred
by adroit management until Hoosier Drill Company became a major
farm implement manufacturer. In 1878 Kinsey sold the business,
which was merged with another implement maker to form the Wayne
Agircultural Implement Works. Kinsey took the $80,000.00 he
received from the sale of the Wayne Works and built the River
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Rolling Mills in Milton. He also built a 2 story brick business
block, the principal business block in the town. Kinsey married
twice, first to Mary Purvine Jones in 1847, second to Mrs. Mary
E. Griffith in 1892. No children survived him upon his death in
1896. Kinsey had planned to leave Beechwood to Wayne County,
Indiana as a poor farm. His lawyers were riding out to his estate
to execute his new will when Kinsey died. Consequently, the farm
was sold at public sale to Rufus Lindsey March 18, 1898. Rufus
Lindsey conveyed Beechwood to his son, Harper Lindsey, in 1921.
Harper Lindsey was survived by Charity Clark, his daughter, upon
his death in 1973. The Lindsey famlly was a well known Cambrldge
Clty farmlng familv. -~

Beechwood is the well-preserved home of a mid-19th century
financier and philanthropist. Isaac Kinsey, a birthright member
of the Society of Friends, -.expended his considerable wealth in
a variety of charitable activities in Wayne County. His last
gesture, leaving Beechwood to Wayne County for the relief of poor
persons, was typical of his life. His country home represents the
life style and social status of Kinsey. It is as much a social
document as the charters of the charities to which he contributed
so much.
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